
Planning Board Meeting 
Wednesday 09/14/11-APPROVED Page 1 of 5 
 

LONDONDERRY, NH PLANNING BOARD 1 

 4 
Members Present:  Mary Soares; Lynn Wiles; Laura El-Azem; Chris Davies; Tom 5 
Freda, Ex-Officio; Rick Brideau, CNHA, Ex-Officio; Dana Coons, Scott Benson, 6 
alternate member; Leitha Reilly, alternate member; Maria Newman, alternate 7 
member 8 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF September 14, 2011 AT THE MOOSE HILL 2 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 3 

 9 
Also Present:  André Garron, AICP; Janusz Czyzowski, P.E.; John Trottier, P.E.; 10 
Libby Canuel, Community Development Secretary 11 
 12 
M. Soares called the meeting to order at 7 PM. M and appointed S. Benson to vote 13 
for A. Rugg. 14 
 15 

 17 
Administrative Board Work 16 

A. Tammy M. Verani 2004 Revocable Trust, Map 17, Lot 34 – Continued Public  18 
    Hearing for a 5 lot subdivision and Conditional Use Permit.  19 
 20 

A. Garron stated that the applicant has requested a continuance to October 12, 21 
2011. 22 
 23 
L. Wiles made a motion to continue the public hearing to October 12, 24 
2011 at 7pm.  D. Coons seconded the motion.  No discussion.  Vote on 25 
the motion: 8-0-0.  The hearing is continued to October 12, 2011 at 7PM.   26 

 27 
B. 124-126 Rockingham Road Gas Station/Convenience Store Site Plan  28 
 29 
     A. Garron referenced a letter from the applicant requesting a special meeting  30 

to sign the plans for this project, provided they can meet the conditions     31 
outlined in the letter (see Attachment #1). 32 

 33 
    The consensus was to arrange a special meeting to sign the plans. 34 
 35 
C.  Verani Property at 217 Rockingham Road, 15-22-1 - Adding Pizza/Sub Parlor 36 
 37 

A. Garron referenced a letter from George Chadwick of Hancock Associates 38 
asking that a determination be made as to whether a Full Site Plan review is 39 
required for a permanent change of use on Map 15, Lot 22-1 (see Attachment 40 
#2).  The applicant is requesting that a pizza/sub shop share space in the 41 
building with the barber shop previously allowed by the Board.  The limousine 42 
business that has been using the site will be removed and there will be no 43 
changes made to the site.  J. Trottier said staff has met with the engineer and 44 
reviewed the two issues that need to be resolved; 1) amending the 45 
Department of Transportation’s (DOT) driveway permit because of westerly 46 
curb cut impacts associated with the improvements occurring at the abutting 47 
Londonderry Freezer Warehouse and 2) the required connection to the sanitary 48 
sewer for the restaurant. 49 



Planning Board Meeting 
Wednesday 09/14/11-APPROVED Page 2 of 5 
 

 1 
M. Soares asked for comments from the Board.  L. Wiles asked whether the 2 
current use is recorded on the deed or just Town records.  A. Garron said it is 3 
only recorded on Town records because site plans are not recorded at the 4 
Registry of Deeds.  Town records are updated as each use is approved by the 5 
Board.  If the proposed change in use is approved, the new plan and its 6 
purposes will supplant the current one which requires site plan review for any

      15 

 7 
change in use.  Moving forward, changes that the Building Inspector deems are 8 
similar to the approved retail use would therefore not require site plan 9 
approval.  D. Coons noted that there are parking spaces currently on the site 10 
that are not shown on the proposed plan.  A. Garron said that whatever is 11 
approved on the plan is what will be on the site.  M. Soares asked if approval 12 
of the plan would set a precedent and A. Garron said in this situation, it would 13 
not. 14 

D. Coons made a motion allow the proposed change in use to be 16 
handled administratively by staff, subject to DOT approval and the 17 
obtainment of a sewer discharge permit.  L. Wiles seconded.  No 18 
discussion.  Vote on the motion: 8-0-0.  The change in use will be handled 19 
administratively.  20 

 21 
D. Discussions with Town Staff 22 

 23 
• Mr. Michael DiGuiseppe- Londonderry Shoppes- Entitlement Concerns 24 
 25 
A. Garron stated that the plan submitted for design review involving Map 26 
15, Lots 51 and 59 has generated several issues.  He noted that this is not 27 
a public hearing for the project, but instead a discussion seeking direction 28 
from the Board.  The areas of concern are as follows: 29 
 30 

o Traffic improvements; The applicant is requesting that 25% concept 31 
plans be allowed in place of 100%, noting that the majority of NH 32 
towns require only 25%.  A. Garron said that while the Town has 33 
traditionally accepted 50% for improvements involving State roads, 34 
they have required 100% plans when involving Town roads.  J. 35 
Trottier said 100% is needed to determine whether traffic impacts 36 
would be mitigated.  J. Czyzowski strongly recommended to the 37 
Board that past practice be adhered to in order to protect the Town's 38 
interests and avoid setting precedence.  T. Freda asked if the 39 
requirement can be waived by the Board and A. Garron confirmed it 40 
could because it is part of the site plan regulations.  T. Freda also 41 
noted that unless one knows what all of the off-site improvements 42 
are, it is unlikely one can determine exactly what 25% is.   43 

 44 
M. DiGuiseppe, developer of the property, stated that DOT has 45 
approved his plans and that they actually have jurisdiction over the 46 
first 175 feet of Vista Ridge Drive.  He explained that 25% is a DOT 47 
standard of criteria that must be met to establish that the plan is 48 
conceptually satisfactory.  All site plan approvals from staff, he said, 49 
have been acquired with the exception of the 100% plans for the 200 50 



Planning Board Meeting 
Wednesday 09/14/11-APPROVED Page 3 of 5 
 

remaining feet of Vista Ridge Drive that the Town oversees.  If it 1 
were not for this requirement, the project could have started this 2 
year.  It will now most likely not start until the spring or summer of 3 
2012 due to this one issue.  He provided a list of 20 other towns in 4 
New Hampshire that require only 25% as requested by staff.  He 5 
asked the Board to alleviate a financial hardship and provide 6 
conditional approval of the design concept.  The difference between 7 
25% and 100% plans, he said, would only address minor 8 
improvements regarding the aforementioned 200-foot section, but 9 
would cost him an additional $75,000.  10 
 11 
D. Coons noted that Home Depot was approved subject to various 12 
improvements that needed to be made on Gilcreast Road and asked 13 
why the same could not be done here.  J. Czyzowski clarified that all 14 
improvements to Gilcreast were shown ahead of time and the only 15 
condition was that a letter from the State be provided indicating their 16 
approval of improvements to Route 102.  He added that DOT does 17 
not, in fact, have jurisdiction over any section of town roads.  In 18 
addition, Town staff had a list of 12 comments regarding the traffic 19 
study that were not answered.  DOT, he said, would not approve the 20 
concept of a plan if the Town has issues with it and in this case, Town 21 
staff has not yet met with DOT.  When asked by T. Freda what the 22 
impact of only 25% plans would be, J. Czyzowski said that a 23 
precedent would be set and necessary improvements such as 24 
easements would only be discovered after approval has been given.  25 
T. Freda and C. Davies replied that that is a risk the developer takes.  26 
A. Garron said that with only 25%, staff cannot advise the Board as 27 
to whether a project will work or not.  D. Coons stated his preference 28 
for adhering to past practice of 100% and noted that regulations 29 
have been amended over the years based on negative experiences 30 
involving less than that.  He then asked how this would affect the 65-31 
day approval process if the plans are conditionally approved based on 32 
25% and problems are discovered after the fact.  A. Garron replied 33 
that once the plans are approved conditionally, the 65-day clock 34 
stops.   35 

 36 
o NHDOT Requirements; The applicant is stating that many of the DOT 37 

requirements cited by the Town from the Manual on Drainage Design 38 
for Highways do not apply to a private site such as this.  They 39 
therefore ask that requirements for interior drainage and construction 40 
details within the property be waived by the Town.  J. Czyzowski said 41 
these standards are applied to all site plans and that the 42 
requirements selected from the DOT manual apply specifically to 43 
Town roads.  He said the requirements are not excessive and 44 
recommended the Board not grant such a waiver.  M. DiGuiseppe 45 
replied that the issue lies with having to meet all of the DOT 46 
requirements.  He does not object to many of them but instead has 47 
issues with a select few and is asking for relief from meeting 100% of 48 
the requirements.  Based on discussions that took place today, he 49 



Planning Board Meeting 
Wednesday 09/14/11-APPROVED Page 4 of 5 
 

added, he believes this is something that engineers from both sides 1 
can resolve. 2 

 3 
o Slope Areas 3:1 vs. 4:1; J. Czyzowski said staff was amenable to this 4 

change. 5 
 6 

o Retaining Wall at Edge of Easement; The applicant is requesting that 7 
the retaining wall and grading plan be approved because they will not 8 
impact the stability of the roadway which is a concern of staff.  J. 9 
Czyzowski said the retaining wall needs to be outside the Town right 10 
of way, however it is unknown at this point where that right of way 11 
will be once the road is widened.  This would be an example of the 12 
kind of issue that would not be covered by only 25% plans.  13 

 14 
M. Soares asked for consensus from the Board over the traffic 15 
improvements issue.  S. Benson stated his understanding of M. DiGuiseppe 16 
not wanting to invest 100% into a study and then finding out it cannot be 17 
approved.  However, he continued, without 100% plans, an investment 18 
could be made into a conditionally approved project that might turn out to 19 
be cost prohibitive because of issues found after the fact.  He said he would 20 
want to see 100% plans.  M. DiGuiseppe responded that based on his 21 
experience, he felt comfortable with the level of detail involved with 25% 22 
plans.  The issue for him is one of timing and having to spend the amount 23 
needed for 100% plans now as opposed to next spring or summer.  L. El-24 
Azem, D. Coons, and R. Brideau stated their preference for 100%.  L. Wiles 25 
said he thought 25% was acceptable because 100% would be due before 26 
any plans could be signed.  T. Freda also agreed, stating that perhaps 27 
Londonderry needs to amend their policy to be more business friendly.  C. 28 
Davies believed 25% was sufficient because the risk lies with the developer.  29 
M. DiGuiseppe stated that if the consensus was for 100% plans, he would 30 
abandon the project.  He then left the meeting.  T. Freda asked staff what 31 
the risk would be to the Town by allowing 25%.  M. Soares said it would 32 
lengthen the process for developers and delay the start of projects.  A. 33 
Garron added that without 100%, staff cannot be accountable to the Board 34 
as to whether a given project will be successful.   J. Czyzowski gave an 35 
example where the Town could be left to maintain a portion of the off-site 36 
improvements that was not sufficiently designed in the first place because it 37 
was not included in the plans.  A discussion ensued about whether the 38 
regulations should be changed to allow less than 100% plans.  M. Soares 39 
asked A. Garron to schedule that topic for another meeting and to keep the 40 
Board apprised of subsequent conversations with M. DiGuiseppe.  D. Coons 41 
asked staff to review what criteria the State and other towns use to satisfy 42 
25% plans to see if it is a standard they think could be acceptable.   43 

 44 

 46 
Other Business 45 

A. 2013-2018 Capital Improvement Program (CIP)- Workshop 47 
 48 
A. Garron reviewed the projects that are in consideration for this year (see 49 
Attachment #3).  He first noted that there are no Priority 1 projects.  50 



Planning Board Meeting 
Wednesday 09/14/11-APPROVED Page 5 of 5 
 

Priority 2 includes the School Department’s SAU Building and the Pettengill 1 
Road Upgrade.  A. Garron said that additional information regarding the 2 
anticipated economic impacts to the Pettengill Road area was supplied to 3 
the CIP Committee.  An updated application for another round of TIGER 4 
fund grants will be submitted for that project in October.  Another Priority 2 5 
project is the Route 102 Corridor Plan Update (the handout erroneously 6 
included Route 28, the western segment of which was done last year).  The 7 
Public Works and Engineering Department has two projects listed under 8 
Priority 2.  The first is for Roadway Rehab/Reconstruction which was 9 
reduced by the CIP Committee to $1 million annually for six years.  The 10 
second is for improvements to the Highway Garage.  The CIP Committee 11 
questioned the increase from $110,000 last year to $260,000 this year.  J. 12 
Czyzowski explained that the total cost has not changed but that the project 13 
is being done in phases.  The final Priority 2 project is for the Replacement 14 
of Emergency Medical Equipment.  Priority 3 projects include the School 15 
Auditorium, District Wide Renovations, Central Fire Station Renovations, the 16 
GIS Update and Maintenance Program, Open Space Protection (which was 17 
changed from $2 million in 2013 to $500,000/year for 4 years starting in 18 
2013), Recovery Way Drop off Center Improvements, South Londonderry 19 
Sewer Phase II, and the Mammoth Road Sewer Replacement (portion).  L. 20 
Wiles asked that the figures for the Open Space Protection program be 21 
verified against what the recent Open Space Task Force recommendations 22 
were.  Two Priority 4 projects were listed; one for the Plaza 28 Sewer Pump 23 
Station Replacement (funding for which no longer includes TIF funds) and 24 
the Mammoth Road (North) Sewer Extension.   25 
 26 
A public hearing will take place before the Board on October 12, 2011. 27 

 28 
Adjournment
 30 

: 29 

L. Wiles made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  D. Coons seconded the 31 
motion.  Vote on the motion: 8-0-0.  32 
 33 
The meeting adjourned at 9:14 PM.  34 
 35 
These minutes prepared by Jaye Trottier and Libby Canuel, Community 36 
Development Department Secretaries. 37 
 38 
 39 
 40 
Respectfully Submitted, 41 
 42 
 43 
 44 
Lynn Wiles, Secretary 45 



jtrottier
Typewritten Text
Planning Board Meeting Minutes

jtrottier
Typewritten Text

jtrottier
Typewritten Text
09/14/11 Attachment #1



jtrottier
Typewritten Text
Planning Board Meeting Minutes 09/14/2011 Attachment #2



jtrottier
Typewritten Text
Planning Board Meeting Minutes 09/14/2011 Attachment #3












	091411 PB min - APPROVED
	0914 PB min attachments



